ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 6, 2002
1:14 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Drew Scal zi, Co-Chair
Representative Hugh Fate, Vice Chair
Representative Joe G een
Representative Lesil MCQiire
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Beverly Msek, Co-Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Beth Kerttul a

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 390

"An Act extending the termnation dates of certain activities
and sal non nmarketing prograns of the Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute and of the salnmon nmarketing tax; expanding the
al l owabl e use of that tax for the salnon marketing prograns of
the Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute; relating to the Al aska
Seafood Marketing Institute's salnmon marketing commttee; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 390 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 287

"An Act relating to the exenption of commercial fishing entry
permts from clains of creditors, to loans to satisfy past due
federal tax obligations of comercial fishing entry permt
hol ders, and to loan origination charges for |oans made by the
commercial fishing |oan program to refinance a debt obligation;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 287(FSH) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 208

"An Act relating to aquatic farmng of shellfish; and providing
for an effective date."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2002



- MOVED CSHB 208(RES) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 503

"An Act relating to evaluating state assunption of the
wast ewat er di scharge program under the federal Cean Water Act;
and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 390

SHORT TI TLE: ASM  SALMON MARKETI NG &VARKTNG TAX
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) MCGUI RE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 08/ 02 2181 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 08/ 02 2181 (H FSH, RES

02/ 25/ 02 (H) FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 25/ 02 (H Moved Qut of Commttee

02/ 25/ 02 (H M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 27/ 02 2405 (H) FSH RPT 6DP

02/ 27/ 02 2405 (H DP: DYSON, COGHI LL, SCALZI,
KERTTULA,

02/ 27/ 02 2405 (H) W LSON, STEVENS

02/ 27/ 02 2405 (H FN1: ( CED)

02/ 27/ 02 2418 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  KERTTULA

03/ 01/ 02 2444 (H FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER RES

03/ 06/ 02 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 287
SHORT TI TLE: EXEMPT ENTRY PERM TS FROM CREDI TOR CLAI VB
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) SCALZI

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 04/ 02 1950 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/02

01/ 14/ 02 1950 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1950 (H) FSH, RES, FIN

01/ 18/ 02 2014 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  HUDSON

01/ 30/ 02 2101 (H COSPONSOR( S):  FATE

03/ 04/ 02 (H) FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 04/ 02 (H Moved CSHB 287(FSH) Qut of
Committee

03/ 04/ 02 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H FSH RPT CS(FSH) NT 3DP 2AM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2002



03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H DP: SCALZI, KAPSNER STEVENS;
03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H) AM COGHI LL, KERTTULA

03/ 06/ 02 2485 (H) FNL: ZERO( DFG)

03/ 06/ 02 2485 (H FN2: ( CED)

03/ 06/ 02 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 208
SHORT TI TLE: AQUATI C FARMB FOR SHELLFI SH
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) SCALZI

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 23/ 01 0705 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 23/ 01 0705 (H FSH, RES, FIN

03/ 04/ 02 (H) FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 04/ 02 (H Moved CSHB 208( FSH) Qut of
Conmittee

03/ 04/ 02 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H FSH RPT CS(FSH) 2DP 3AM

03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H) DP: SCALZI, STEVENS, AM
COGHI LL;

03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H KERTTULA, KAPSNER

03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H) FN1: ZERQ( DEC)

03/ 06/ 02 2484 (H FN2: (DNR)

03/ 06/ 02 2496 (H COSPONSOR( S) : MCGUI RE

03/ 06/ 02 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

SUE ASPELUND, Executive Director

Cordova District Fisherman United (CDFU)

P. 0. Box 939

Cordova, Al aska 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 390 on behalf of
CDFU and, as Bristol Bay fishernen, on behalf of herself and her
daughter; testified in support of HB 287 on behal f of CDFU.

RODGER PAI NTER, Shel | fish Farner

P. O Box 20704

Juneau, Al aska 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 390 and HB 208.

BARBARA BELKNAP, Executive Director

Al aska Seaf ood Marketing Institute (ASM)
Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent
311 North Franklin, Suite 200

Juneau Al aska 99801-1147

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of ASM in favor of HB
390.

KATHY HANSEN, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Fishernmen's Alliance

9369 North Dougl as H ghway

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 390.

GERALD (JERRY) MCUNE, Lobbyi st

for United Fishernen of Al aska (UFA)

211 Fourth Street, Suite 110

Juneau, Al aska 998901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 390.

ROBI N SAMUELSEN

Bristol Bay Econom c Devel opnent Cor porati on ( BBEDC)
P. O Box 412

Dillingham Al aska 99576

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 390.

BRUCE HENDRI CKSQN, Conmerci al Fi shernman

P. 0. Box 1439

Homer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified with regard to his proposed
anendnent to HB 287.

GREG W NEGAR, Director

D vision of |Investnents

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

P. O. Box 34159

Juneau Al aska 99803-4159

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered specific questions regarding HB
287 on behalf of the departnent.

CHERYL SUTTON

P. 0. Box 39214

Ni nil chik, Al aska 99369

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 287.

STEPHEN LaCRO X, Aquatic Farm Applicant

P. 0. Box 5868

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 208 and rem nded
the commttee that | eases had been extended to ten years.

BOB LOEFFLER, Director

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2002



D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Depart ment of Natural Resources

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1070

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3579

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave the departnent's support to HB 208 and
answer ed questi ons.

ROBERT HARTLEY

Al aska Shellfish Growers Associ ati on (ASGA)

P. O. Box 2284

Honer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 208 and
indicated it would solve many problens for shellfish farners.

DOUG MECUM Direct or

Di vision of Commercial Fisheries

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

P. O. Box 25526

Juneau Al aska 99802-5526

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 208 on behal f of
t he departnent.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-15, SIDE A
Number 0001

COCHAIR DREW SCALZI called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:14 p.m Representatives Scal zi,
Fate, MGQuire, Geen, and Stevens were present at the call to
order. Representative Kapsner arrived as the neeting was in
progress.

HB 390- ASM SALMON MARKETI NG

CO CHAI R SCALZI announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 390, "An Act extending the term nation dates
of certain activities and salnon narketing prograns of the
Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute and of the salnon marketing
tax; expanding the allowable use of that tax for the sal non
mar keting prograns of the Alaska Seafood Mrketing Institute;
relating to the Alaska Seafood Marketing Institute's salnon
mar keti ng conmttee; and providing for an effective date."

[ There was a notion to adopt HB 390 as the working docunent, but
it was already before the commttee.]

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2002



Nunber 0120

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE, speaking as the sponsor, explained that
HB 390 sinply extends the sunset date for five years so the
Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute (ASM) can carry on its
busi ness. Representative MQuire commented, "They've certainly
done a good job, | think, of |ooking to the people who are going
to benefit from it the nost, expecting from them a reasonable
tax and then using that tax to ... market our seafood and bring
dollars back to the State of Al aska."

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE pointed out that the bill contains one
substanti ve change. She'd chosen to renove the donestic sal non
mar keting | anguage in order to allow ASM flexibility to choose

to market its seafood as it sees fit. She explained that she
beli eves ASM shouldn't be given a tool that is then
m cr omanaged. She said ASM, wth its board, is capable of

maki ng decisions in response to the various marketing denmands.

REPRESENTATI VE M GUI RE i nf ormed t he comm ttee t hat in
di scussions with Barbara Bel knap of ASM, she'd understood that
ASM doesn't intend to sinply shift "all those dollars"” away

from donestic marketing. Furthernore, ASM believes [the
donmestic market] is an inmportant part of the market. However,
this flexibility my be wutilized in reaching out to the
i nternational nmarkets. Representative MQ@ire noted that the

commttee packet should include letters of support.
Nunmber 0468

SUE ASPELUND, Executive Director, Cordova D strict Fishermn
United (CDFU), testified via teleconference. Ms. Aspel und
informed the committee that CDFU has been involved with the
successful pronmotion of Copper R ver salnon and thus feels
qualified to coment on seafood marketing in Al aska.

MS. ASPELUND announced that CDFU fully supports the 1-percent

sal non assessnent reauthorization this year. She enphasi zed
that passage this year is very inportant for project planning
and program stability. Furt hernore, CDFU supports lifting the
donmestic marketing restrictions, since it would provide ASM the
flexibility to adapt to changing market conditions. For

exanple, had ASM had this flexibility during the mad cow
di sease outbreak, "we" would ve been better poised to take
advant age  of t hat potenti al mar ket opportunity overseas.

Additionally, lifting the donmestic marketing restrictions wll

al l ow access to nore matching doll ars.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2002



M5. ASPELUND turned to the concerns regarding decreasing the
donestic marketing program She highlighted that [the fishing
i ndustry] has enjoyed a $5-million boost in donmestic marketing
through the "Northwest TAT (ph) grants.” Currently, an
excel l ent donestic marketing programis in place, she said.

M5. ASPELUND testified briefly on behalf of herself and her
daughter, as Bristol Bay fishernen. Ms. Aspelund said she and
her daughter support reauthorization and lifting of the donestic
mar ket i ng aut hori zati on.

Number 0608

RODGER PAI NTER, Shellfish Farnmer, testified in support of HB
390. M. Painter informed the committee that he has been a
board nenber of ASM for the past eight to ten years. Although
[HB 390 refers to] a tax on salnon harvesters, he stressed that
it's critical to ASM. He related his belief that wthout the
1-percent tax, ASM wouldn't have a viable programin the U S
mar ket pl ace. M. Painter also pointed out that ASM does nuch
for the entire [fishing] industry. Although the dollars com ng
in for salnon marketing are directed at the sal non program he
said they create "trenendous coattails for the rest of us to
ride on." M. Painter urged the conmttee to support HB 390.

Number 0743

BARBARA BELKNAP, Executive Director, Alaska Seafood Marketing
Institute (ASM), Departnent of Conmunity & Econom ¢ Devel opnent
(DCED), explained that ASM is supported by industry assessnents
and federal grants. The salnmon fishernmen's 1 percent anounted
to $2 mllion for this fiscal year, and the .3-percent processor
tax on all seafood contributed $2.8 mllion. She explained that
in fiscal year 2000, the salnon tax constituted 51 percent of
ASM's tax [receipts], whereas the processor tax constituted 40

percent. Next fiscal year, the portion from the processor tax
will rise to 61 percent, while the portion from the sal non tax
will decrease to 38 percent. Those figures illustrate the

decline in sal non prices.

M5. BELKNAP inforned the conmittee that the ASM Board of
Directors had voted to support the renoval of the restriction on
the 1-percent [tax] for donestic narketing. Furthernore, the
Sal nron Marketing Conmttee that oversees the 1-percent tax also
supported the renoval of the donestic restriction as well as
allowing the ASM Board of Directors to determ ne where those

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2002



funds are spent overall. She noted that the [Sal non Marketing
Committee] will continue to be present as a oversight commttee.

Nunmber 0873

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS inquired as to the inpact if [HB 390]
isn't [passed].

MS. BELKNAP answered that ASM woul dn't be able to match grants.
Currently, ASM is in the second year of a $5-million grant that
is a dollar-for-dollar match. That grant was spread over three
years in order that it could be matched with the 1-percent
dol | ars. Wthout the 1-percent tax, ASM wouldn't be able to
try for other grants. Furthernore, there wouldn't really be a
vi abl e program She remarked that at a certain point, either
nore noney nust be put in or the nmethod of operation would have
t o change.

Number 1008

KATHY HANSEN, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Fishernen's
Al'liance, testified in support of HB 390. She expl ained the
i nportance of passing the 1l-percent tax this year so ASM
doesn't get into the sane crunch as the last tine the 1-percent

ASM tax was renewed. The last time, ASM proceeded into the
summer w thout knowing that the 1-percent tax was renewed; thus
no planning could be done. She felt that a sumrer's worth of

pronoti on was | ost.

M5. HANSEN also announced support for [lifting the donestic
restriction. She enphasized that ASM has had an incredible
ability to obtain mtching funds. For instance, ASM has
| everaged as nuch as $9-$12 per $1. [ Through] the ability to
free up a small amount of donestic marketing and | everage it as
mentioned, the marketing ability is greatly increased, and it
benefits everyone.

Number 1120
GERALD (JERRY) MCUNE, Lobbyist for United Fishernmen of Al aska
(UFA), testified in support of HB 390. He expressed the
i nportance of getting HB 390 noving in order to make plans for
the future.

Nunber 1186

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2002



ROBI N SAMUELSEN, Bristol Bay Econonm c Devel opnment Corporation
(BBEDC), testified via teleconference in support of HB 390. He
related the belief that this assessnent is necessary, especially
in light of salnon farm ng.

CO CHAI R SCALZI cl osed public testinmony on HB 390.

Number 1258

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to report HB 390 out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 390 was noved out of the House

Resources Standing Committee.

HB 287- EXEMPT ENTRY PERM TS FROM CREDI TOR CLAI M5

Number 1287

CO- CHAIR SCALZI announced the next matter before the committee,
HOUSE BILL NO 287, "An Act relating to the exenption of
comercial fishing entry permts from clains of creditors, to
| oans to satisfy past due federal tax obligations of commerci al
fishing entry permt holders, and to loan origination charges
for loans nade by the comercial fishing loan program to
refinance a debt obligation; and providing for an effective
date."

Number 1339

[ There was a notion to adopt CSHB 287(FSH), | abel ed 22-1LS1106\L,
but it already was before the commttee.]

CO CHAIR SCALZI, speaking as sponsor of HB 287, characterized
the bill as a reauthorization of the state's current federal tax
| oan program Reaut hori zation would prevent the program from
bei ng phased out by a "sunset" provision. Co-Chair Scalzi told
the commttee that this would be the second reauthorization of
t he program It would allow up to $30,000 to be |everaged from
the state loan program for federal tax obligations. He pointed
out that the bill would elimnate the .5-percent |oan fee that
goes along with the current program He characterized the
process as streamined and not expensive to the departnent. He
said the expense of the loss of the .5-percent fee would be
borne by the | oan programitself, not the general fund.

CO CHAIR SCALZI spoke to the problem of creditors trying to
place liens on entry permts. The bill makes clear the fact

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 6, 2002



that commercial fishing entry permts are not property, but
rather "user rights" allowed by the State of Alaska to help
manage the state's fisheries. He referred to page 8, Section 7,
and said it specifies [in AS 16.10.333 - 16.10.338, AS
16.43.170(g), AS 44.81.215, and AS 44.81.231 - 44.81.250] what
permts may be used to satisfy clains of creditors, including
the Division of [lnvestnents]. Co-Chair Scal zi nentioned
[Section] 9 of the bill and stated his wsh to have the
departnent address it.

Number 1570

ROBI N SAMUELSON, Bristol Bay Econonmi c Devel opnent Corporation
(BBEDC), testified via teleconference. He characterized the
bill as very inportant to the people of Bristol Bay. He said
BBEDC has a Bristol Bay [entry] permt brokerage that deals with
permt financing problens; it dealt with 161 individuals who
were at risk of losing their permts in the previous year. He
said in the current year 361 people were in trouble; these
peopl e are watershed residents. He said the bill would help to

protect the fishernen of his community and the state as a whol e.

Nunmber 1652

BRUCE HENDRI CKSQON, Commer ci al Fi sher man, testified Vi a
t el econf er ence. He nade reference to a letter he'd sent the
committee with a proposed anendnent to HB 287. The anendnent

would be to add a section to AS 16.10.333 that authorizes the
Division of Investnents to "wite down the value of permt | oans
to the nost recent value of the last two sales of the loan in
cases where the decline in value exceeds one-third of the val ue
of the loan." He asked the commttee to keep their mnds open
to his suggestions.

Nunber 1781

GREG W NEGAR, Director, Division of Investnents, Departnent of
Community & Economc Devel opnent, testified before the
conmittee. He told the commttee that the sunset of the tax
obl i gati on program woul d be di senabled by the bill. The program
is not large in volume - the division has nmade about 300 | oans
since the programis inception - but it is an inportant tool for
the division to work with individuals who are in difficulties
with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).

MR WNEGAR also addressed the renoval of the .5-percent
origination fee for the refinancing program The refinancing

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 6, 2002



program has been very popular on account of the |ow interest
rates in recent years. M. Wnegar said the renoval of the fee
woul d reduce the anobunt of noney going into the fund but would
not injure the integrity of the fund, since it is very strong

and receives no general fund nonies. If the bill is not signed
into law before the tax obligation sunsets, a provision in the
bill would renove the sunset provision.

Nunmber 1898

CO CHAI R SCALZI asked if the fact that nmuch of the bill concerns
the expiration date was the reason for the bill's | engthiness.

MR. W NEGAR answered in the affirmati ve.

CO CHAIR SCALZI brought up the refinancing fee and asked M.
W negar what the departnment’'s opinion was with regard to it.

MR. WNEGAR characterized the departnent's process of dealing

with the refinancing of Iloans as "very streamined."” The
application is one page, and the departnent 1is processed
internally. He said the process would not cause any

difficulties.

CO CHAI R SCALZI asked rhetorically if the .5-percent savings on
refinancing would be a help to fishernen in the current tinmes of
| ow prices for fish and permts.

MR W NEGAR said that was correct.

CO- CHAIR SCALZI raised the "once in a lifetinme" provision that
woul d provide loans for federal tax relief. He referred to the
di scussion in the House Special Committee on Fisheries about
whet her or not people would seek this tax relief every year. He
said that was not the intent of the bill. He asked M. W negar
to expand on what result the departnent envisioned from changing
from a once-in-a-lifetinme opportunity to one available once a
year.

Nunber 2025

MR. WNEGAR told the conmittee this change was to provide the
departnment the flexibility to help people nore than once. He
expressed his belief that people would not abuse the program by
getting the |l oan every year because it is a loan [that nust be
repaid], and the departnent would treat it as such when
reviewi ng collateral, repaynent, and debt service.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2002



Number 2072

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS pointed out that the only reason to
obtain | oans every year would be a reduction in interest rates.

MR. WNEGAR said currently there is no restriction to the
refinanci ng program The restriction cones into play for the
tax obligation program Under the bill, the program would be
able to assist fishernen with tax relief nultiple tines, instead
of just once.

Number 2133

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked what the process is for review ng |oan
applications, especially for second and third | oans.

MR. W NEGAR answered that the loans would be treated |ike any
other loans. Applicants would fill out a conplete application.
The division would look at credit and collateral, anong other
t hi ngs.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked if the |oans would be reviewed within
t he departnent.

MR W NEGAR answered in the affirnative.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she thought it was a great bill
because it protected the market for permts by precluding the
IRS from seizing and selling permts at very |low |evels. The
state is able to keep the permt market healthy with the bill

Nunber 2249

SUE  ASPELUND, Cordova District Fishernmen United (CDFU),
testified via teleconference. She characterized HB 287 as
another "inportant tool in the box" for fishernen to utilize
during the current downturn in the industry. She called the

bill a "buffer” during a difficult tine. She said the help may
not be large in terns of dollars, but mght nean the difference

bet ween being able to work or not. She gave CDFU s support to
the bill.
Number 2308

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2002



KATHY HANSEN, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Fishernen's
Al'liance, gave her group's support to the bill and characterized
it as "a tool that we need in order to function."

Nunber 2340
MARY McDOVELL, Comm ssi oner, Comrer ci al Fi sheri es Entry

Comm ssion (CFEC), Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane (ADF&G),
testified before the commttee. She said Sections 1, 5, 6, and

7 would clarify and firm up the legal status of limted entry
permts under state |law. She announced that the State of Al aska
has always maintained that I|imted entry permts are not
property and are not to be seized by creditors. In the current
Limted Entry Act - AS 16.43.150(e) - "An entry permt
constitutes a use privilege that may be nodified or revoked by
the legislature without conpensation.”™ She qualified this as an

inportant part of the state's fisheries nanagenent system
because it ensures the state's control of fishing privileges.

M5. MDONELL warned that if the legal status of entry permts
were left open in any way to varying interpretations, it could
be detrimental to the interests of the state. If the argunent
could be nade that permts are property, and thereby available
to seizure by creditors, the state's fisheries nmanagenent
program could be destabilized. The state could |lose control to
the courts. She characterized the issue as especially inportant
in the current tinmes of struggling fisheries.

Nunber 2444

M5. McDOWELL referred to Section 1 of [CSHB 287(FSH)] and said
it revises Title 9, the Code of Civil Procedure. She said that
the current law includes entry permts in the list of types of
property entitled to exenption; there mght be the inplication
that permts are property because they show up in a list of

exenpt properties. The bill renoves permits from that section
of Title 9 and places precise |anguage in Section 5 of the bil
- page 7, line 26 - that states clearly that an entry permt is

not property.

M5. MDOWELL said Section 6, page 7, lines 30-31, inserts
| anguage in the limted entry statutes that nakes it absolutely
clear that the only time a person may request the conm ssion to
transfer an entry permt, due to an execution on the permt, is
if that execution is for the purpose of enforcing a lien
recorded with the conm ssion under the statutes of the Child
Support Enforcenent Division (CSED).

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 6, 2002



M5. MDOWNELL said Section 7, page 8, lines 19-24, spells out
that fishing privileges are exenpt from the clainms of al
creditors, except for fishing l|oans wunder the D vision of
I nvestnents and under the Commercial Fishing and Agriculture
Bank (CFAB) - the only two institutions allowed to treat permts
as collateral - and for CSED s authority to place a lien on a
permt. M. MDowell urged the bill's passage.

Nunmber 2553

GERALD (JERRY) MCUNE, Lobbyist for United Fishernmen of Al aska
(UFA), testified before the conmttee. He characterized the
bill as very inportant because in many villages, people' s only
livelihood is from fishing. He said taking away soneone's
permt takes away the ability to feed one's famly. There are

many fishermen who would benefit from the renoval of the .5-
percent fee for refinancing, he suggested.

Nunmber 2606

CHERYL SUTTON testified before the committee. She addressed a
point made by Representative Kapsner by saying the |IRS has

attenpted to seize permts but has never been successful in
doi ng so. She said the Commercial Fisheries Entry Conmm ssion's
position has beconme nore tenuous since then. This bil

strengthens the conmi ssion's position by classifying the permt
as a fishing privilege rather than property.

M5. SUTTON said she was aware that Co-Chair Scalzi had the
situation of fishermen in Bristol Bay in mnd when he added the
portions of the bill concerned with federal taxes. She said the
bill was "so necessary” and expressed her wsh that it be
approved and noved forward.

Nunmber 2685

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noved to report CSHB 287(FSH) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 287(FSH) was noved
out of House Resources Standing Conmittee.

HB 208- AQUATI C FARMS FOR SHELLFI SH

CO CHAI R SCALZI announced the final matter before the commttee,
HOUSE BILL NO 208, "An Act relating to aquatic farmng of
shel I fish; and providing for an effective date."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2002



REPRESENTATIVE CGREEN nade a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS), version 22-LS0763\P, Ut er nohl e,
3/5/02, as the working docunent. There being no objection,
Version P was before the committee.

Nunber 2820

STEPHEN LaCRA X, Aquati c Farm Applicant, testified via
t el econference, extending his support to the "basic bill." He
pointed out that in the year since the bill was first crafted,

| eases for farmsites had been extended to ten years.
Nunber 2874

BOB LCEFFLER, Director, Division of Mning, Land and Wter,
Department of Natural Resources, testified before the conmttee.

He informed nenbers that the departnment was in full support of
the bill.

Nunber 2904

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked about the ten-year |ease M.
LaCroi x had asked about, and said he did not see it in the bill

MR. LOEFFLER said it was in the original bill, and the question
of valuation is not in [Version P]. He said it was taken out
because it woul d be nore expensive for the aquacul ture growers.

Number 2940

RODGER PAI NTER, Al aska Shellfish Growers Association, testified
before the conmttee. He thanked all involved for working hard
on the bill. He pointed to the biggest change in Version P.

TAPE 02-15, SIDE B
Nunber 2945

MR. PAINTER said [the biggest change] provides for 90 sites that
may be contained in a smaller nunber of areas. Another change,
on line 11, adds the word "potentially" between the words
"sites" and "suitable". This is to clarify that not al
questions would be fully answered and that there would be nore
permts to obtain after a bidder secures the |ease at auction.
He pointed to the change on line 16 and said it nade the
| anguage consistent with existing statutes.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- March 6, 2002



Nunber 2854

ROBERT HARTLEY, Alaska Shellfish G owers Association (ASG)
testified via tel econference. He expressed his support for the

bill and told the conmttee the bill would solve many problens
for shellfish farners. He characterized shellfish farmng as a
remedy to sonme of the economic ills that had recently befallen

the comercial fishing industry, he said the two dovetai
nicely. Noting that Al askan aquatic farnmers produce sone of the
hi ghest-quality shellfish in the world, he said the industry in
Al aska can barely neet the demand in Anchorage.

Number 2759

DOUG MECUM Director, D vision of Comrercial Fisheries, Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane, testified before the conmttee. He
said the bill is an exanple of good governnent, wth the
industry, legislature, and agencies working together to devel op
| egislation that will be good for Al askans. He added that the
noney is an issue, and new sources of funds wll have to be
| ocated to nake the program worKk.

Nunber 2708

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE asked what expenses the departnment was
incurring prior to the bill, when there was only the Aquatic
Farm Act on the books. She also asked why there is such a |arge
fiscal note for the bill now

MR. MECUM responded by saying the existing program consists of a
mariculture coordinator, an assistant, and a snmall anmount of
operational funds. He said that noney had been reprogramred for
the assistant position, different fromthe year before. He said
his departnent's budget for the program is approximtely
$200, 000. He characterized the fiscal notes from ADF&G [from
the Division of Habitat Restoration and the Division of
Comrercial Fisheries] as "a one-tine infusion of funds." The
Division of Conmercial Fisheries' cost was estinmated to be
$90, 000 - down from $200,000 in the original bill - in the first
year; in the second year, there would be a decrease of about
hal f . He said there were simlar nunbers for the Division of
Habitat Restoration. M. Mecum said he has talked with the ASGA
about the fiscal not es, which agreed the nunbers were
r easonabl e. He added that the intent of the bill was to double
the size of the industry.

Nunmber 2536

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- March 6, 2002



REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE asked if [the departnent] had been
pul ling $200,000 from its existing budget to run the program
prior to the bill

MR. MECUM said the funds wouldn't be needed after two years, in
his estinmation. He said the bill ains to find areas suitable
for 90 sites.

Nunber 2502

Co- Chair Scal zi asked what the difference would be between what
the bill legislates and what the programwas in the past.

MR MECUM said currently people can submt applications for
sites statew de. He said it is a problem however, and offered

t he anal ogy: "Bring me a rock. No, I"'m sorry, that's not the
right rock; bring ne another rock." He characterized the intent
of the bill as having the departnent do a "brush-clearing
exercise," saying the departnent would clear things away in
order to find areas where people can feasibly farm shellfish

He said the bill is a very different approach.

Number 2445

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE answered that she didn't "have a problem
with that" and would continue to support the bill, even though
she thought it would be dooned by the fiscal note. She gave the
anal ogy of the oil industry: the state doesn't allow it to
develop all over the state, but the oil industry is instrunental

inidentifying areas where it has been successful in drilling.

MR. MECUM characterized Representative McGQuire's point as a good
one. He told of his vision of a partnership between the
i ndustry and the departnent wherein proposals would be brought
forth by the industry and the departnent would do the basic
survey and inventory to determ ne whether a site would be right
for devel opnent.

Nunber 2346

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked what sort of revenue would be
generated by offering | ease sites through public auction.

MR. MECUM deferred to Bob Loeffler of the Departnent of Natura
Resources (DNR), since DNR would be in charge of |[easing. He

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2002



said ADF&G would be concerned with the biological aspects of
shel | fish farm ng.

Nunber 2304

CO CHAIR SCALZI said there were problenms wth the old system
He expressed his belief that the partnership approach of the
bill would be "productive and streamined."” He said DNR has
i ncreased the budget by neans of "oil and water-rights issues
that do nmake us noney." He said Alaska has to |look for things
that will generate noney for the state coffers, and this bill
m ght help in that pursuit.

Number 2209

MR. LOEFFLER told the committee the 90 sites would generate
roughly $55, 000 per vyear. The three-acre lease sites would
require a few years to be conpletely taken up.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said it was nore palatable to see sone
estimated income for the state's $250,000 than to see the nobney
dunped into allowing "those guys [to] go out and do sone
aquacul ture."

Number 2123

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noved to report CSHB 208 [version 22-
LS0763\P, U ernmohle, 3/5/02] out of committee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 208(RES) was noved out of the House Resources
Standi ng Conm ttee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:20 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2002



